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Municipality of Brockton  
Planning Report 

To:     Municipality of Brockton Committee of Adjustment  

From:    Dana Kieffer, Planner 

Date:    April 28, 2020 

Application:   Minor Variance  

File:      A-2020-009 

Recommendation 
That Minor Variance A-2020-009 made by Turner Reeves be approved as attached 
subject to the conditions on the decision sheet. 

Summary 
The application proposes to reduce the Minimum Distance Separation (MDS I) setback 
between the proposed development and a livestock facility across the road in order to 
allow the construction of a new house on a vacant lot. 
 
The subject lands are 0.62 ha (1.5 acres) and zoned ‘A1- General Agriculture’.  The 
required setback from the livestock facility to the new dwelling is 286 m. The setback from 
the livestock facility to the back of the lot is 242 m +/-.  Without zoning relief from the MDS 
I requirement, building a house would not be permitted.  
 
The following considerations have been reviewed in the Planning Analysis section of 
this report: 

• Minimum Distance Separation Guidelines 
• Four Tests of a Minor Variance 

The proposal maintains the intent and purpose of the Official Plan and Zoning By-law and 
is not expected to have an impact on surrounding property owners, the environment, or 
municipal functions and is desirable for the appropriate development of the land. 
Therefore, the application satisfies the four tests of a minor variance and is good land use 
planning.  
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Site Plan 
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Planning analysis 
The following section provides an overview of the planning considerations that were 
factored into the staff recommendation for this application, including relevant planning 
policy sections, agency comments and public comments where applicable.   

Minimum Distance Separation  
In 1976 The Agricultural Code of Practice was established, and this code introduced the 
principle of a sliding scale for separation distances from livestock facilities. The Minimum 
Distance Separation (MDS) setbacks are intended to minimize nuisance issues relating 
to odour generated from livestock facilities. It is acknowledged that the MDS setbacks will 
not eliminate all potential odour complaints, nor will they address other possible irritants 
related to farming (noise, dust, lights, flies, slower farm machinery on the road).  

The variables that are factored into the calculation of the separation distances under the 
MDS separation formulae relate to type of livestock, number of nutrient units, the degree 
of expansion proposed, type of manure system, and the type of adjacent land use that 
may be affected.  

The Ontario Ministry of Agriculture and Food and Rural Affairs (OMAFRA) Guidelines on 
MDS recognize that there are circumstances where a proposed use may not comply with 
the precise setbacks required by the MDS formulae, but the use would meet the intent of 
the document. This leads to Planning Act applications (in this case, a minor variance). In 
the document, OMAFRA states that it does not support or encourage reductions to MDS 
setbacks and they should be approached with caution. The tests that the MDS publication 
outlines are aligned with the Planning Act tests for minor variances.  

The Provincial Policy Statement requires that new and expanding livestock facilities shall 
comply with the minimum distance separation formulae (2.3.3.3). 

Four tests of a minor variance 
Does the variance maintain the intent and purpose of the Official 
Plan? 
Yes. The subject land is designated as ‘Agricultural Area’ where residential uses on 
existing lots are permitted. 

The Bruce County Official Plan states that all new land uses, including the expansion of 
existing, or the establishment of any non-agricultural uses including the creation of lots, 
and new or expanding livestock facilities shall comply with the Provincial MDS Formulae. 
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A Minor Variance or Zoning Amendment to allow for a reduction in the Provincial MDS  
requirements shall consider the following:  

(i) does the reduction have regard for the intent of the Official Plan;  
(ii) does the reduction have regard for the intent of the Zoning By-Law;  
(iii) is the reduction minor in nature;  
(iv) is the reduction desirable and appropriate for the area; and  
(v) can any potential environmental impacts be appropriately mitigated. 

 
The reduction proposed has regard for the intent of the Official Plan and Zoning By-law 
as the applicant’s land has space limitations to build within the required setbacks.  The 
reduction is minor in nature as there is still sufficient distance between the two uses to 
allow for future expansion potential of the livestock facilities in question.  This reduction 
is desirable and appropriate because a residential dwelling is permitted in the Zoning.   

The application maintains the intent and purpose of the Official Plan. 

Does the variance maintain the intent and purpose of the Zoning By-
law? 
The property is zoned General Agriculture (A1).  Meeting the required MDS I setback is 
also a requirement of the Brockton Zoning By-law.  The barn across the road is a feeder 
operation with a current maximum housing capacity of 300.  The required MDS setback 
is 286 m and Mr. Reeves is requesting a setback of 197 m. 

It is my understanding the farm to which the reduction applies sold the lot to Mr. Reeves.  
Additionally, the farmer would have received a notice in the mail advising the nature of 
this application. It is important to build in some flexibility for future owners of the farm in 
should they wish to expand in the future.  The MDS II formula (see attached Appendix 4) 
for expanding livestock operations found that the farmer across the road does still have 
some expansion ability if the house is permitted, and could increase his operation by 50% 
for a total of 450 feeders with no setback relief [these calculations are for illustration 
purposes only, any expansion will have to have more accurate numbers calculated]. If the 
farmer were to do a complete rebuild of the facility, they would have flexibility to build a 
barn further back on the lot to meet setbacks.    

The variance maintains the intent and purpose of the zoning bylaw. 

Is the application desirable for the appropriate development of the 
land, building or structure?   
Yes.  The space limitations on the lot do not permit a house to be built that meets the 
setback requirements. The variance will enable the property owner to build a new house 
while the farm will still have flexibility to expand.  
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Is the application minor in nature? 
The decreased Minimum Distance Separation (MDS I) setbacks to the barn across the 
road will have minimal impacts on surrounding property owners as the farmers are still 
left with the ability to expand their operations.  Since the lot legally exists, and is vacant 
and underutilized for its intended use at present, it does warrant a reduction in the MDS 
setbacks. The new house is not expected to have negative impacts  

Whether a variance is minor is evaluated in terms of the impact the proposed 
development is expected to have on the surrounding neighbourhood. It is not expected 
that permitting the variance will have any impact on the character of the area, on the 
ability of adjacent property owners to use their property for permitted uses, on the 
environment, or on municipal functions. 

The variance is considered to be minor. 

Appendices 
1. County / Local OP / zoning maps 
2. Public Notices 
3. Agency Comments  
4. MDS II 
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Appendix 1 - Maps 

Bruce County Official Plan- designated Agriculture 

 

Municipality of Brockton Comprehensive Zoning By-law- Zoned A1 
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Air Photo (2015) 
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Appendix 2 - Public Notice
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Appendix 3 - Agency Comments 

Municipality of Brockton 
1) The lot was created as a retirement lot by the father of the current owner of the 

barns in the 1990’s. Both barns existed at the time of creation of the lot. 
 

2) There are no sanitary sewer or water services available for this lot and the 
Municipality of Brockton Operations Department will need to be consulted about 
the driveway entrance on to the roadway. The address will also need to be 
identified. 

SVCA 
SVCA staff find the application acceptable.  

The subject property does not contain any natural hazard features of interest to the 
SVCA.   

It is the opinion of SVCA staff that the natural heritage features affecting the property 
may include habitat of endangered species and threatened species.  The Ministry of 
Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) for information on how to address this 
policy.      

The property is not subject to the SVCA’s Ontario Regulation 169/06. 

Historic Saugeen Metis 
No objection or opposition to the proposed development, land re-designation, zoning, 
land severance, Official plan and/or Zoning By-law Amendments. 
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Appendix 4 – MDS II
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